

Town of Plaistow ◆ Board of Selectmen

145 Main Street ◆ Plaistow ◆ NH ◆ 03865

Plaistow Board of Selectmen Minutes

Date: March 18, 2024

Meeting Called to Order: 6:02 P.M.

Roll Call:

Select Chairman, Bill Coye – Present Select Vice Chairman, Jay DeRoche – Present Selectman, Jonathan Gifford – Present Selectwoman, Tammy Bergeron – Present

Also present: Town Manager Greg Colby, newly elected selectwoman Liz Kosta and Administrative Specialist, Beth Hossack.

Bob Harb – Plaistow Exchange Club

Bob Harb is representing the Plaistow Exchange Club. April is Child Abuse Prevention Month. In 2008 the pinwheel was declared to be the National Symbol for child abuse prevention. For the past two (2) years the Plaistow Exchange Club has placed a pinwheel garden outside of Town Hall. Mr. Harb is asking the Board for permission to have another pinwheel garden this year. The plan is to have two (2) gardens this year with a total of three hundred (300) pinwheels.

There is consensus amongst the Board to allow the Plaistow Exchange Club to proceed with the pinwheel gardens for the month of April.

Old Home Day Committee – Planning Update

Chair Shauna Manthorn and Lean MacKean are present to provide an update on the 2024 Old Home Day Event. Ms. Manthorn states they are promoting the event with high technology. All activities, the schedule, vendor signups and other information will all be available online very soon. Information will also be on Face Book and the Town website. This will be a special event since Old Home Day will be celebrated with the 275th anniversary of Plaistow. The event will kick off on Thursday, June 20 with Kids Fest from 5 p.m. to 7 p.m. Some activities for Kids Fest include arts and crafts, music and a performing magician.. Friday night will focus on residents aged 18 and older. A Decades Dance will be held at the Fish & Game Club. Attendees will be encouraged to dress up in their favorite decade. Saturday's activities will be more of a traditional Old Home Day Event. The day will start with the Road Race at 9:00 a.m. The Baby Contest, Beard Contest and many other activities along with vendors and food trucks will be held on the Town Green. The parade will start at 2:00 p.m. Fireworks will be held Saturday night. The event will wrap up on

Sunday at Terra Farms by celebrating the Plaistow Lions Club 75th Anniversary. Volunteers are needed and welcomed for all events. If you cannot attend meeting you can still help the Saturday of the event by giving an hour or two of your time.

Ms. MacKean asks the Board if they agree to waive the vendor fee for any food trucks parking on the street. Vendors selling food on the Town Green are required to pay the vendor fee and also the temporary food license fee to the Health Department. For those vendors who are parking on the street the Old Home Committee recommends waiving the vendor fee and having them only pay the food license fee. This will allow more vendors to participate. Last year some vendors did not participate due to the two fees.

Selectman DeRoche motions to waive the vendor fee for vendors parking on the street for the 2024 Old Home Day Event. Seconded by Selectwoman Bergeron.

Vote: 4-0-0 Motion carries.

Ms. Manthorn thanks the Board. The next Old Home Day meeting will be held on Wednesday, April 10 at 6:00 p. m. at the Plaistow Historical Society.

Swearing In of Newly Elected Officials

Town Clerk, Matha Fowler swears in Bill Coye and Liz Kosta as selectmen. Margo Collins and David Gerns are sworn in as budget committee members. Robert Harb is sworn in as Town Moderator. Richard Anthony is sworn in as a Planning Board Member. Michelle Sykes is sworn in as a Library Trustee. Nolan Pelletier is sworn in as a Conflict-of-Interest Committee Member.

Everyone is congratulated.

Selection of BOS Chair and Vice Chair

Chair Coye states it is time to select a Chair and Vice Chair for 2024.

Select Chair Coye motions to nominate J. DeRoche as Chair. Seconded by Selectman Gifford. Vote: 5-0-0

Motion carries.

Selectman Gifford motions to nominate B. Coye as Vice Chair. Seconded by Selectwoman Bergeron.

Vote: 5-0-0 Motion Carries.

Congratulations to Chair DeRoche and Vice Chair Coye. At the next meeting, the Board will vote on representatives for all other Boards/Commissions/Committees.

Newly elected Chair DeRoche takes over the meeting.

Rockingham County Dues

Chair DeRoche refers to the memo from the Planning Board. At their meeting on October 4, 2023,

they unanimously voted to recommend to the Board of Selectmen that they renew the Town of Plaistow's membership in the Rockingham Planning Commission and pay the dues of \$8,125. Selectman Coye believes this is worthwhile. The commission is very helpful for the Planning Board.

Selectwoman Bergeron motions to pay the Rockingham Planning Commission 2024 dues in the amount of \$8,125 based on the recommendation from the Plaistow Planning Board. Seconded by Selectwoman Kosta.

Discussion: Selectman Coye states the dues is based on \$1.03/capita. Plaistow's population is approximately 7,888.

Vote: 5-0-0 Motion carries.

Determine Meeting Schedule

Chair DeRoche recommends keeping the meeting schedule every other Monday for now. The next several meeting will be held at 6:00 p.m. at Town Hall on:

April 1, 15, 29 May 13, 20 June 3, 17

Consent Agenda

Item Description

- 1. Accounts Payable Manifest week of March 7th, 14th, and 21st, 2024.
- 2. BOS Draft Minutes of February 26th, 2024.
- 3. One (1) Land Use Change Tax Warrant.
- 4. Two (2) Recommended Appointments for Conservation Commission.
- 5. Two (2) Recommended Appointments for Zoning Board of Adjustment Members

Add on

6. Two (2) Recommended Alternate Appointments for Library Trustees

Selectman Coye motions to approve the consent agenda including the add on. Seconded by Selectman Gifford.

Vote: 5-0-0 Motion carries.

Town Managers Report/Potable Water Update

- New England Earth will be back in Plaistow soon to complete Contract P4 connecting homes with PFAS & MtBE issues.
- Will attend a water meeting tomorrow in Concord. This is for the whole system from Manchester to Plaistow. Phase 2, which is more capacity will be discussed.
- Finalizing reports for the Department of Revenue Administration based on warrant article appropriations including the 2024 MS-535 and MS-232.
- The Audit wrapped up last week.
- We ended the year with approximately \$2,577,000 in the unassigned fund balance. The budget was only underspent by about \$229,000. The driving factor was the vacancies in the police department. This is a very tight margin on a budget of over 10 million dollars.
- Has been busy with several meeting including some personnel issues.

Chair DeRoche states a few warrant articles did not pass. Some of them were capital reserve accounts for highway equipment. He wants to know how that will affect the Town. Town Manager G. Colby replies, for the short term it will not be a problem. It will make future purchases down the road more difficult.

The warrant article to put money aside for the 2026 full reevaluation did not pass. The reevaluation is required by law, it is not optional. The budget will have to be increased quite a bit for 2026 to cover the cost.

Selectwoman Bergeron states we need to provide more education to the community, so they understand the purpose of warrant articles.

Town Manager G. Colby states, all in all the voters supported key areas.

Selectmen's Reports

Selectman Gifford

• The Historical Society is doing well. There are two Eagle Scout Projects at the museum this year. They are also gathering information on the oldest citizen in order to present that person with the Boston Cane. Recently, four (4) new volunteers have stepped up to help.

Selectman Coye

• He thanks the citizens for reelecting him to another term as selectman.

Chair DeRoche welcomes Liz Kosta as a new selectwoman.

Selectwoman Bergeron

• Attended the Con Com meeting. They are preparing for Arbor Day. The theme this year is "Trees are Superheroes."

Chair DeRoche – nothing to report.

Events

- The Toddler Easter Egg Hunt will be held on Friday, March, 29 at 10:00 A.M. on the Town Green.
- The Easter Egg Hunt will be held on Saturday, March 30 at 9:30 A.M. on the Town Green.
- The Town-Wide Clean Up Day will be held on Saturday, April 20.
- Plans are being made for April School Vacation Week. One trip will be to the New England Aquarium, another to Launch Trampoline Park in Methuen. The Friends of Recreation will host an event on April 26 at the Performing Arts Center (PAC).

Chair DeRoche states there is information in the folders for Local Officials Training offered by NHMA. Please reach out to Beth if you plan to attend.

Chair DeRoche would like to be as transparent as possible with BOS meetings. He recommends posting the packet information received by the Board to the website so all residents may read it. He would like to bring back the Action Item List. He would like each selectman to think about goals to accomplish this year.

There will be a Memorial Day Program this year. Please reach out to Beth if you would like to help.

Chair DeRoche asks Town Manager G. Colby if there is a need for a nonpublic session tonight. Town Manager G. Colby replies, yes under legal.

Selectman Gifford motions to enter nonpublic session under RSA 91-A:3 II (L) consideration of legal advice provided by legal counsel. Seconded by Selectwoman Kosta.

Board Polled Chair DeRoche = yes, Vice Chair Coye = yes, Selectman Gifford = yes, Selectwoman Bergeron = yes, Selectwoman Kosta = yes.

Motion carries.

Chair DeRoche states we will not be coming back to a public session tonight.

Meeting adjourned at 7:02 P.M.

Public session resumes at 7:16 P.M.

As there is no further business before the Board, Chair DeRoche adjourned the meeting at 7:16 P.M.

Respectfully submitted,

Beth Hossack, Administrative Specialist